
Page 1 of 9 

 

      West Deer Township 

          Board of Supervisors 

          15 August 2018 

          7:00 p.m. 

          

 

 

The West Deer Township Board of Supervisors held their Regular Meeting at the West Deer Township Municipal 

Building.  Members present:  Shirley Hollibaugh, Chairwoman; Richard W. DiSanti, Jr.; Shawn Maudhuit; Joyce A. 

Romig; and Gerry Vaerewyck.  Members absent:  Beverly Jordan and Arlind Karpuzi.   Also present were:  Daniel 

J. Mator, Jr., Township Manager; Barbara Nardis, Finance Officer; Douglas Happel, representing Griffith, 

McCague, & Wallace; and Scott Shoup, representing Shoup Engineering. 

 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

Chairwoman Hollibaugh opened and welcomed everyone to the meeting.    

 

Roll Call taken by Mr. Mator – Quorum present. 

 

Mr. Happel announced the Board held an Executive Session at 6:30 p.m. to discuss real estate property owned by 

the School District and potential litigation matters that involve the Township. 

 

 

REGISTERED COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

     

 None 

 

 

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

 

 Mr. Bob Brooks was present and introduced himself stating he is a candidate for the vacated position of 

Pennsylvania State Representative Eli Evankovich. 

 

 

ACCEPT MINUTES 

 

MOTION BY Supervisor DiSanti and SECONDED BY Supervisor Romig to accept the minutes of the 18 July 2018 

meeting as presented.  Motion carried unanimously 5-0. 

 

 

MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT 

 

Mrs. Nardis read the following Finance Officer’s Report: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

  08/15/18   

 

Page 2 of 9 

 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST DEER 

FINANCE OFFICER'S REPORT 

31 July 2018 

     I - GENERAL FUND: 
    

  
July YTD % of Budget 

Revenues 
 

362,238.16 4,081.464.94 70.12% 

Expenditures 
 

386,279.77 2,500,284.91 42.95% 

     

          Cash and Cash Equivalents: 
                         Sweep Account 
  

1,831,580.72 
 

    
1,831,580.72 

     II - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS  
         Cash and Cash Equivalents: 
                  Street Light Fund: 
                          Sweep Account - Restricted 
  

26,882.05 
               Fire Tax Fund: 

                          Sweep Account - Restricted 
  

104,672.60 
              State/Liquid Fuels Fund: 

 
         

                       Sweep Account - Restricted 
 

  427,842.43 
 

    
559,397.08 

     Investments:             
                 Operating  Reserve Fund: 
                          Sweep Account - Reserved 
  

806,128.35 
               Capital Reserve Fund: 

                          Sweep Account - Reserved 
  

329,702.65 
 

    
1,135,831.00 

     III - CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS: 
         Cash and Cash Equivalents: 
    

   
0.00 

 

    
0.00 

      TOTAL CASH BALANCE 07/31/18 
   

3,526,808.80 

     Interest Earned July 2018 
 

6,230.96 
  

   
July 

 

  
07/1/2018 Principal 07/31/2018 

  
Debt Balance Payment Debt Balance 

     Mars National - VFC #3 
 

$234,582.52         $2,607.94  $232,652.91 

NexTier Bank VFC #2  $447,492.66         $2,680.96 $446,260.04 
 

Dr. DiSanti stated he would like to commend Mrs. Nardis for negotiating and keeping bank fees down. 

 

MOTION BY Supervisor DiSanti and SECONDED BY Supervisor Vaerewyck to approve the Finance Officer’s 

Report as submitted.  Motion carried unanimously 5-0.                                                                                                                                                                        

LIST OF BILLS  



  

  08/15/18   

 

Page 3 of 9 

 

 

Best Wholesale Tire Co., Inc. ......................................................................... 1759.95 

Culverts, Inc. .................................................................................................. 2200.00 

Dell Marketing LP .......................................................................................... 1219.71 

Griffith, McCague & Happel, PC ................................................................... 1263.50 

Hampton Concrete Products Inc. ...................................................................... 258.00 

Hei-Way, LLC .................................................................................................. 718.61 

Jordan Tax Service, Inc. ................................................................................. 3156.65 

Kress Tire ......................................................................................................... 137.00 

Krigger & Co. ..................................................................................................... 40.20 

Lindy Paving Inc. ............................................................................................. 624.85 

North Hills COG SRT Vehicle Maintenance.................................................. 1500.00 

Shoup Engineering Inc. .................................................................................. 6131.00 

Staley Communications .................................................................................... 194.97 

Stephenson Equipment, Inc. ............................................................................. 797.22 

The Lane Construction Corporation ................................................................. 930.26 

Toshiba Financial Services ............................................................................... 710.69 

Tristani Brothers, Inc. ....................................................................................... 609.52 

Wine Concrete Products, Inc. ......................................................................... 2520.00 

 

MOTION BY Supervisor Maudhuit and SECONDED BY Supervisor DiSanti to pay the List of Bills as submitted, 

and all approved reimbursable items in compliance with generally accepted accounting practices.  Motion carried 

unanimously 5-0.   

  

 

TAX REFUNDS 

 

The Board is in receipt of the list from the Tax Collector requesting the issuance of real estate tax refunds due to 

assessment changes by Allegheny County for the year 2018. 

 

2018 REAL ESTATE TAX REFUNDS 

NAME     LOT/BLOCK  AMOUNT  

Ashbaugh, Robert & Bridget  1361-B-187  $64.76 

 

MOTION BY Supervisor DiSanti and SECONDED BY Supervisor Romig to issue the tax refund as submitted by 

the Tax Collector.  Motion carried unanimously 5-0. 

 

 

POLICE CHIEF’S REPORT 

 

Chief Jon Lape was present and provided a summary report on the Police Department for the month of July 2018.   

A copy of the report is on file at the Township.  Questions and comments followed. 

 

 Chairwoman Hollibaugh thanked the Chief for a successful Community Days. 

 

 The Chief informed the Board that the Deer Lakes School Board requested the Township provide three 

part-time police officers for police security at Curtisville, East Union, and the Middle School. Their salaries 

would be paid by the School District.  Mr. Vaerewyck felt the other two Townships in the School District 

should pay their fair share of expenses (such as worker’s compensation and uniform allowance).  The Chief 

responded that the majority of the students are West Deer residents and some.  After further discussion, an 

agreement will be drawn up between the School District and the Township, and will be placed on the next 

agenda.  A motion to possibly hire the part-time police officers will be added as well.  

 

 

BUILDING INSPECTOR/CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER’S REPORT 

 



  

  08/15/18   

 

Page 4 of 9 

 

Mr. Bill Payne was present and provided a summary report on Code Enforcement for the month of July 2018.  A 

copy of the report is on file at the Township.  Questions and comments followed. 

 

 

PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD REPORT 

 

Mrs. Amy Stark, Chairwoman, was not present at the meeting but she provided a summary report on the Parks and 

Recreation Board.  A copy of the report is on file at the Township.   

 

 

ENGINEER’S REPORT 

 

The Board received the Engineer’s Report submitted by Shoup Engineering, Inc.  Mr. Scott Shoup represented 

Shoup Engineering, Inc., and summarized the meeting attendance and details of his formal report: 

 

Projects 

 

 2018 Road Improvement Project 

o Mr. Shoup mentioned that Youngblood Paving would begin milling and paving operations in the 

Township on Tuesday, August 14
th

, and will start on Oakwood Circle.  He added that Russell 

Standard has completed the bituminous seal coat work on Trump Road, Lick Road, and Carl Lane. 

 Cedar Ridge Storm Sewer Rehabilitation  

o Mr. Shoup informed the Board that Jet Jack continues to perform lining work on the storm sewers. 

 Guiderails 

o Mr. Shoup stated that Fence by Maintenance Service was to provide him with a schedule, and that 

an update will be provided to the Board at its next meeting. 

 Stormwater Ordinance 

o Mr. Shoup advised the Board that Allegheny County has adopted – and Pennsylvania DEP has 

approved – an Act 167 Stormwater Management Plan for the entire County.  He explained that the 

Plan requires all municipalities in the county either adopt a new Stormwater Ordinance or revise 

their existing ordinance to comply with the requirements of the Plan, and that the new or revised 

ordinance must be adopted by 1 December 2018. 

 

Development/Subdivision Reviews 

 

 EMS Subdivision 

o Mr. Shoup reported that the survey work on the Deer Lakes School District and EMS properties 

has been performed and the subdivision plan has been prepared and submitted to the Township 

and School District. 

 

 

ACCEPTANCE:  2019 MINIMUM MUNICIPAL OBLIGATIONS (MMOs) 

 

The Board received copies of the 2019 Minimum Municipal Obligation reports for the Police and Municipal 

Employee Pension Plans. 

 

MOTION BY Supervisor Maudhuit and SECONDED BY Supervisor DiSanti to acknowledge receipt of the 2019 

Minimum Municipal Obligations for the Police and Municipal Employee Pension Plans.  Motion carried 

unanimously 5-0. 

  

 

 

 

ADOPTION:  ORDINANCE NO. 427 (ROAD LIST RESTATEMENT) 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 427 



  

  08/15/18   

 

Page 5 of 9 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WEST DEER, COUNTY, OF ALLEGHENY, COMMONWEALTH 

OF PENNSYLVANIA, AMENDING AND RESTATING THE OFFICIAL LIST OF ADOPTED TOWNSHIP 

ROADWAYS. 

 

MOTION BY Supervisor DiSanti and SECONDED BY Supervisor Romig to adopt Ordinance No. 427 amending 

and restating the Township road list as advertised and presented.  Motion carried unanimously 5-0. 

 

 

APPROVAL:  DEER LAKES SCHOOL DISTRICT PLAN OF LOTS: 

 

The Planning Commission approved the Deer Lakes School District Plan of Lots in July. 

 

Property Location:       East Union Road 

Lot & Block Number:  1511-L-95 

Zoning District:          C-2 Highway Commercial 

 

This is a two-lot subdivision to separate the EMS building from the School District property on East Union Road.  

The Board received the review letter from Shoup Engineering. 

 

The Planning Commission recommended approval of the Deer Lakes School District Plan of Lots. 

 

After some discussion, MOTION BY Supervisor DiSanti and SECONDED BY Supervisor Vaerewyck to approve 

the Deer Lakes School District Plan of Lots as per the recommendation by the Planning Commission.  Motion 

carried unanimously 5-0. 

 

Supervisor Vaerewyck thanked everyone involved in this process. 

 

 

DISCUSSION:  PENNDOT WINTER MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

 

At its last meeting, the Board of Supervisors asked that a representative from PennDOT be present at the meeting to 

discuss the possible addition of State roads – namely Creighton-Russellton Road, Butler-Logan Road (Airport Hill), 

and Route 910 – to the new Winter Maintenance Agreement 

 

Mr. Tim Claypoole from PennDOT Maintenance was in attendance and explained:  the winter maintenance 

program; priority treatment of roads; equipment; truck routes; levels of service; and the dispatch process.  He also 

answered questions by the Board, including those regarding:  signage; visability; drainage; and the landslide at 

Mountainview Road.   

 

Supervisor Romig also asked about a dangerous portion of Route 910 between Cedar Ridge Road and Campbell 

Road, and requested that it be regularly plowed and salted by PennDOT in the winter.  Mr. Claypoole acknowledged 

the danger and stated that he would advise his drivers to maintain that portion this upcoming winter season. 

 

Mr. Mator advised the Board that the new five-year Winter Maintenance Agreement will be reviewed, and that the 

Board will need to revise the list of Township-maintained roads as it sees fit.  He indicated both he and Mr. Yourish 

monitored Creighton-Russellton Road last year on a daily basis, and that its care was “hit or miss.”  Mr. Mator 

informed the Board that they need to determine whether “hit or miss” is acceptable to them. 

 

Mr. Happel added that the last five-year Winter Maintenance Agreement expired in April, and that the compensation 

to the Township for maintaining the roads on the list will be expressed in the new agreement.  

 

Additional discussion took place regarding Mahaffey Road which runs through Deer Lakes Park, as Creighton-

Russellton, Butler-Logan, and Mahaffey roads are on the same route.  Mr. Mator asked Mr. Claypoole that – if the 

Board adds Creighton-Russellton and Butler Logan roads to the Winter Maintenance Agreement – what happens to 



  

  08/15/18   

 

Page 6 of 9 

 

Mahaffey?   Mr. Claypool indicated the State would take care of the road, but that it wouldn’t be a high priority 

road. 

 

At this time, MOTION BY Supervisor DiSanti that the Township take over winter maintenance of Russellton-

Creighton Road and Airport Road to Crawford Road which is slightly beyond the Township line but will be better 

for our trucks to turn around.  Motion failed for lack of a second. 

 

Supervisor Vaerewyck questioned if the Township was able to maintain a road that is outside of West Deer 

Township.  Mr. Mator indicated it is permissible for turnaround purposes, and is already done for some outlying 

roads, but Mr. Vaerewyck interrupted and stated he was asking Mr. Happel.   

 

Mr. Happel stated that he would need guidance from the Township regarding who takes care of that road.  He said if 

it is a State Road that Frazer Township takes care of, the Township would not be reimbursed.   

 

Mr. Mator clarified that the Township is able to be reimbursed for roads outside the Township as long as PennDOT 

and the other municipality are amenable to that.  Mr. Claypoole concurred. 

 

Mr. Vaerewyck questioned what additional equipment would the Road Department need.  Public Works Foreman 

John Yourish was present and indicated some adjustments would have to be made depending on how many roads 

the Board decided to take over. 

 

Mr. Happel indicated at the next meeting the Board will vote on the Winter Maintenance Agreement with the 

attached road list, of which Dr. DiSanti would like Creighton-Russellton Road included with the original ten roads.  

He advised that a supplement to the agreement could be added each year if the Board would like to add a road. 

 

Mrs. Romig questioned if Route 910 was on the list, and indicated she would rather wait to see if PennDOT would 

salt that hill as stated earlier since Route 910 was not yet on the list. 

 

Mr. Mator requested clarification from Mr. Claypoole regarding Mahaffey Road.  He indicated that – based on their 

meeting the day earlier – both he and Mr. Yourish were under the impression that if the Township did not take over 

Mahaffey, then PennDOT would not authorize the Township taking over the winter maintenance of Creighton-

Russellton Road and Butler-Logan Road.   

 

Mr. Claypoole responded that it would not be that he wouldn’t authorize it, but that he would prefer the Township 

take over all of those roads.  He explained that it would free up one of his trucks to take care of other roads.   

 

Dr. DiSanti indicated he had no problem adding Mahaffey Road. 

 

Supervisor Romig stated she did not want to spread the Township’s Public Works Department too thin.  She 

questioned if taking over these additional roads was going to require the purchase of more equipment and/or the 

hiring of more employees. 

 

Mr. Claypoole indicated that if the Township ever has a problem – and the State has a truck in the area – he will help 

out if able.   

 

Mr. Mator stated that he needed guidance/direction from the Board as to which roads are on the list he sends to 

PennDOT for inclusion in the new agreement.   

 

 

DISCUSSION:  CREIGHTON-RUSSELLTON ROAD 

 

At the last meeting, the Township Solicitor requested that the PennDOT Winter Maintenance Agreement addition of 

Creighton-Russellton Road from the last agreement be discussed separately. 

 

Mr. Happel commented that last November there was a vote taken, and that vote was to authorize the Chairman of 

the Board of Supervisors to sign a supplemental agreement adding both Creighton-Russellton Road from Little Deer 



  

  08/15/18   

 

Page 7 of 9 

 

Creek Road to the Park entrance, and Creighton-Russellton Road from the Park entrance to Frazer Township. He 

explained that there was a supplemental agreement provided by PennDOT and executed by the Chairman Fleming.  

Mr. Happel added that at that point of time, however, it was not provided to PennDOT.   

 

Mr. Happel stated that – as far as linear miles – it would have added 1.6 linear miles of roads to the last agreement. 

 

Supervisor DiSanti added that he would like to see the maintenance extend to Crawford Run Road.  Mr. Happel 

indicated it would need remeasured, and Mr. Claypoole indicated once approved it would be taken care of.  

 

Mr. Happel asked Mr. Mator if he has a list of the roads currently on the list.  

 

Mr. Mator explained that every road from the last agreement – with the exception of Creighton-Russellton Road and 

Butler-Logan Road – were on the list provided to the Township by PennDOT, and that if the Board wanted those 

roads added he could request that of PennDOT.  He notified those in attendance at the meeting that the facts had 

changed after the Board had voted in November – the routes were found to be incorrect after the vote – and that he 

was advised to give PennDOT the opportunity to see how those new routes work before submitting the amendment.   

 

Mr. Happel stated that he felt those roads are already part of the list since the Board voted on them in November, but 

Mr. Mator disagreed and explained that vote last year was for the old agreement and the two roads were not included 

by PennDOT on the new agreement.   

 

Mr. Happel commented that the two roads were on the supplemental list last year even though they were not 

provided to PennDOT, and again argued that they should therefore be on the new list provided by PennDOT. 

 

Mr. Mator stated that he was simply asking for clarification from the Board of Supervisors as to whether they want 

those roads on the list or not. 

 

Supervisor Vaerewyck said it was already stated in November that the Board wanted those roads added, and so if 

someone wanted to take them off he thought that action would require a new vote.   

 

Mr. Mator indicated he understood what Mr. Happel and Mr. Vaerewyck were saying, but attempted to clarify the 

fact that the copy he has in his office – from PennDOT – does not have the roads on it, and that is why he is asking 

the Board to confirm that they want him to request that of PennDOT after he was directed to give PennDOT’s new 

routes a chance after the error was found in November. 

 

Mr. Vaerewyck accused Mr. Mator of failing to have the roads added after the vote in November, and stated that is 

the issue.  

 

Mr. Claypoole interjected and said that whatever list Mr. Mator was provided from PennDOT is the list PennDOT 

goes by.   Supervisor Vaerewyck stated “it’s an internal Township thing – something didn’t get to PennDot that 

should have.”  Mr. Claypoole responded that as long as it is on the new Agreement – that is all that matters.  He 

explained that the Township could add or subtract roads every year if they chose.  Mr. Claypoole stated that in order 

to have Mr. Mator put it on the list to send to PennDOT’s Winter Agreement manager, all of the roads have to be on 

the agreement, and that it needs to be treated as a whole new agreement.    

 

Mr. Happel questioned the timeframe for acceptance.  Mr. Claypoole explained that there is a certain time frame to 

accept certain roads, and said that signed agreements should be in by the middle of September.   

 

Mrs. Romig pointed out that the next meeting is on September 19
th

, and asked if the Township could submit that on 

September 20
th

.  Mr. Claypoole answered “absolutely.” 

 

Mr. Happel indicated Mr. Mator was looking for direction, and confirmed that the direction of the Board was to 

include those two roads on the list.   

 

Dr. DiSanti said he realized the list currently has Butler-Logan Road ending at the Township line, but would like it 

to continue to Crawford Run Road. 



  

  08/15/18   

 

Page 8 of 9 

 

 

The Board thanked Mr. Claypoole for attending 

 

 

DISCUSSION:  SOCIAL MEDIA 

 

At its last meeting, the Board of Supervisors agreed to have Mr. Karpuzi and Mr. Vaerewyck provide separate 

proposals for a possible social media presence. 

 

Mr. Vaerewyck requested the discussion be put off until next month’s agenda since Mr. Karpuzi was not at the 

meeting.  The other supervisors concurred. 

 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

The Committee Chairperson reported on their Committee updates: 

 

1)  Mr. Vaerewyck – EMS Committee 

2)  Mrs. Romig – Engineering & Public Works Committee 

3)  Dr. DiSanti – Financial, Legal & Human Resources Committee 

4)  Mrs. Jordan – ABSENT – Parks & Recreation Committee  

5)  Mr. Karpuzi –ABSENT – Zoning, Planning & Code Committee 

6)  Mr. Karpuzi –ABSENT – North Hills COG Report 

 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

 Dr. DiSanti asked Mr. Happel if there is an update on the airport litigation.  Mr. Happel indicated he has no 

update but will provide an update at the September meeting. 

 

 Mrs. Hollibaugh commented on Community Days, including the parade, and the dedication for the 

playground at the Park. 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

 None 

 

 

SET AGENDA:  REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

 

September 19, 2018 

 

6:30 p.m. – Executive Session 

7:00 p.m. – Regular Business Meeting 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Roll Call 

4. Executive Session Held 

5. Registered Comments from the Public 

6. Comments from the Public 

7. Accept Minutes 

8. Appointed Auditor’s Report by Mr. Turnley 

9. Tax Abatement Speaker 

10. Monthly Financial Report 



  

  08/15/18   

 

Page 9 of 9 

 

A. Finance Officer’s Report 

B. List of Bills 

C. Tax Refunds 

11. Police Chief’s Report 

12. Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer’s Report 

13. Report from the Parks & Recreation Board 

14. Engineer’s Report 

15. Approval:  PennDOT Winter Maintenance Agreement 

16. Advertisement:  Ordinance No. 428 (Creation of Voting Districts) 

17. Discussion:  Pavilion Rental Policy 

18. Committee Reports 

19. Old Business 

20. New Business 

21. Set Agenda/October 17, 2018 

22. Comments from the Public 

23. Adjournment 

 

 

Items Added: 

* Agreement/DL School Board 

* Part Time Police Officers 

* Stormwater Ordinance Advertisement 

* Social Media 

 

 

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

 

 Ms. Anna Marie Catanese, McKrell Road 

o Commended everyone involved on a great Community Days. 

o Requested having the stone/plaque cleaned/polished at the Bairdford Park pavilion. 

 

 Mr. George Zietz, corner of Russellton Airport Road and Baileys Run Road 

o Expressed his concerns on Russellton Airport Road in regard to the storm drains, stop signs, 

flooding, snow/ice, traffic accidents, tractor-trailers, and triaxle trucks traveling on the road. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

MOTION BY Supervisor Romig and SECONDED BY Supervisor DiSanti to adjourn the meeting at 8:53 p.m.  

Motion carried unanimously 5-0.  Meeting adjourned. 

 

 

      ______________________________________  

      Daniel J. Mator, Jr., Township Manager 

 

 

 


